February 10, 2006 – 9:00 a.m. Lyle Shields Meeting Room Brookens Administrative Center

MEMBERS PRESENT:	Cowart (Chair), Bensyl, Carter, Feinen, Gross, Jay, Langenheim, O'Connor
MEMBERS ABSENT:	Weibel
OTHERS PRESENT:	Jeff Blue, John Cooper, Debby Wagner (Highway Department), Barb Wysocki (County Board Chair), Susan McGrath (Office of the State's Attorney), Chris Doenitz (County Board member)

Call to order

Chair Cowart called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. A roll call confirmed a quorum present.

Approval of Agenda/Addendum

MOTION by Langenheim to approve the agenda; seconded by Carter. There was no addendum for the meeting. **Motion carried**.

Approval of Minutes – December 16, 2005

MOTION by Jay to approve the minutes of December 16, 2005 as presented; seconded by Langenheim. **Motion carried**.

Public Participation

There was no public participation.

<u>Monthly Reports</u> County & Motor Fuel Tax Claims – December 2005 & January 2006

MOTION by O'Connor to receive and place on file the County & Motor Fuel Tax Claims for December 2005 & January 2006; seconded by Carter. **Motion carried**.

Final Bridge Report

MOTION by Jay to receive and place on file the final bridge report; seconded by Bensyl. **Motion carried**.

County Engineer

Ordinance for the establishment of an altered speed zone on Township Road 1800 N in Urbana Road District.

Mr. Blue explained they received a request from the Urbana Township Highway Commissioner, requesting a 40 MPH speed limit on Airport road, east of Highcross Road. As a result, they conducted a speed study which indicated a 45 MPH speed zone in that area, from 1600 E to 1650 E. When asked if the Commissioner understood why they couldn't post 40 MPH, Mr. Blue explained it is difficult to jump down 15 miles in any study, generally it is lowered slowly and the commissioner does understand that.

MOTION by Jay to recommend County Board approval of the Ordinance for the establishment of an altered speed zone on Township Road 1800 N in Urbana Road District; seconded by Langenheim.

Mr. O'Connor stated he knows this area, he feels it is dangerous and he does not see harm in having a speed zone at 40 MPH. Mr. Blue explained that the statute states there has to be a traffic study performed in order to post a speed limit lower than 55 MPH in a rural area and if you do the speed study and determine what the 85th percentile speed is for traveling through the area, that is the speed that is posted. If they post lower and someone gets stopped speeding, they could fight it.

When asked if they could make a motion to set the limit at 40, instead of the recommended 45, Ms. McGrath explained that they cannot amend the speed limit to 40. If they attempt to authorize a different limit than has been suggested by the study, any traffic tickets or ordinance violations that would occur on that roadway would be void. She concurred with Mr. Blue's suggestion of doing a second study after the 45 limit has been posted for some time, and she explained that the committee has the authority to request a second study be done although it is not only authorized by the county but also by IDOT.

Ms. Feinen asked for a friendly amendment to the motion to provide Mr. Blue the authority to request a second study be done, the seconder agreed with the amendment. Mr. Jay, the mover, stated he is not in favor of the amendment and feels we should leave it alone.

Mr. Blue stated he is not going to tell the Township Highway Commissioner what to do; he would like to see the request come from him, which he is sure it will by fall. Ms. Feinen asked Mr. Blue if he could convey to the highway commissioner that the committee would encourage him to request a second study.

MOTION carried with Mr. O'Connor and Mr. Carter voting no.

Resolution Awarding of contract for the purchase of a 2005 Caterpillar 420D-IT Backhoe Loader.

Mr. Blue explained that this item was before the committee at the last meeting for information only. They opened the bids on January 23, 2006 and, with the trade of our 1997 Backhoe, the low bid was from Altorfer, Inc. of Springfield for \$68,097.00.

MOTION by Bensyl to recommend County Board approval of the Resolution awarding of contract for the purchase of a 2005 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader; seconded by Carter. **Motion carried**.

Resolution appropriating \$18,698.00 from the County Motor Fuel Tax Funds for Champaign County's share of CUUATS – Section #06~00000~00~ES

Mr. Blue explained that this is the annual contribution by all parties interested in CUUATS and it is standard that we pay our share.

MOTION by Langenheim to recommend County Board approval of the Resolution appropriating \$18,698.00 from County Motor Fuel Tax Funds for Champaign County's share of CUUATS – Section #06-00000-00-ES; seconded by Carter.

When asked how they arrive at the proportions, Mr. Blue stated the County doesn't pay the same as Champaign Urbana but he is not sure of the equation used to calculate the shares.

MOTION carried with Mr. O'Connor voting no.

Borrowed Money from Highway & MFT Accounts

Mr. Blue explained that the money borrowed from the Highway fund to help the General fund during their bonding issue has been paid back, and they are back in the black in the highway fund. He asked whoever is on the finance committee, to ensure the department heads are aware of these transfers because he was never notified money was being taken out of his fund.

Fringe Road Funding

Mr. Blue stated the resolution for the million dollar contribution came from the county last year, and he has attended many meetings to talk about dealing with financing of large projects in the future. He explained that Curtis road, phase I, has been bid, the engineer estimate was 4.9 million and it came in at 4.4 million with Champaign Asphalt being the low bidder. That project is due to begin in March and will most likely take two construction seasons to complete. He stated we are a 50% contributor on that project and at the last committee meeting he was authorized to send a letter back to the City of Champaign indicating the county would budget \$1,768,000 for our share of phase I.

Fringe Road Funding cont.

The City is the lead agency and they will make all the payments and bill the county for reimbursement. In reference to Curtis road phase II, which is also joint under the original agreement, the city was to be the lead agency and the county was a financial contributor to the tune of 50%. To get the ball rolling, the public works director from Champaign has drafted a letter which discusses how we will handle the budgeting and timing on Curtis Road phase II. He reviewed the letter, stating that the City is the lead agency on the project from Wesley to a guarter mile west of route 45. The next project, phase III, which is out in the future 10 years, has the County being the lead agency because that project is outside the city limits. The original agreement talked about a 2 lane roadway between Windstone and Wesley but the traffic volumes on Curtis warrant a 5 lane cross section and the city is requesting written confirmation that the County is on board with the 5 lanes. He explained that Clark Dietz was the engineer on phase I of Curtis Road and the city, being the lead agency, has gone back to them, in consultation with the County and Savoy, about engineering the next phase and he doesn't see any reason why they would select another firm; the city is asking that we concur with hiring Clark Dietz as the engineer for phase II. The schedule lays out each project, explaining that phase II is scheduled for 2009. He stated that is important because they received the high profile project money from the federal government through the transportation bill for that and that bill is due to expire September of 2009 so the money for phase II needs to be appropriated to that project prior to the expiration of that bill. If they go beyond 2009 for bidding of that project they would jeopardize the 5.5 million dollar earmark for that project. To make that timeline they need to get started almost immediately and he explained that a family has property along phase II and the city feels in order to acquire the right-away, they will have to go through an eminent domain process which can take 24-30 months so they need to get started on the design, engineering and surveying so the documents can be drafted.

Ms. McGrath stated, on the issue of eminent domain, in the letter, the city questioned if the County had authority to acquire land for Phinney Branch Channel Improvements and she stated the answer is no, she will research the County's authority for off-road detention basin/wetlands remediation site. Mr. Blue stated, because the city does not have eminent domain authority outside city limits and because this roadway falls outside the city limits, they would like to use their personnel and they believe the State's Attorney can appoint a city attorney as a deputy State's Attorney to act on behalf of the county in these proceedings. Ms. McGrath stated she is not sure if they have the authority to appoint an attorney from another branch of government, they have not done that before but she will also research that issue.

Mr. Blue reviewed the proposed schedule for phase II, pointing out it is a pretty tight schedule and the current agreement will have to be updated. Ms. Feinen asked if the current agreement in place would be rescinded and we would be entering into a new one. Mr. Blue responded that the agreement they are talking about is the specific Curtis Road agreement beyond the general fringe road agreement. He stated, not shown in their schedule is our schedule to complete our pavement management program which is a big part of finding out what we have financially to contribute over the years. Referring to the budget he explained that the County will pay 25% of the cost for construction. The agreement is silent on how the management costs will be split.

Fringe Road Funding Cont.

He explained that the city is estimating they will have almost 2000 hours devoted to this project, they feel it is a reimbursable cost and have asked the County to reimburse them for half of those costs, he stated if he were the project manager on this project he would be making a similar request. They show a proposed budget for the project, starting in 2005, with a total cost of 15 million dollars and they have asked the County to review and approve the estimated costs. The proposed County budget, based on the agreement, shows an estimation of 4.7 million dollars spread over 6 fiscal years with the largest costs in 2008-2010. He explained that in relation to the million dollar cap, the County has committed, by a letter sent to the city in December, \$1,768,000 for Curtis Road phase I. They city proposed they would finance the debt for us at a 5% per year interest on any unpaid balance, he told them the county wasn't interested in the city carrying our debt. He stated they believe the County has a 9 million balance in the MFT fund which is correct, but will be drawn down with the construction of the new facility. He presented the committee with spreadsheets explaining that they also have to look at Urbana and see what our timeline is for our major project there, which is Windsor Road. He has met with the cities and Savoy to talk about their timelines and how it falls into our million dollar resolution. In 2005, the County spent just over 1 million dollars, if you include the Prospect project. In 2009-2010, if we finance these projects and pay in the year requested, we would be in the hole and it is not until 2015 that we start seeing a positive balance.

When asked when the pavement management system will start, Mr. Blue explained that he is attending a kick off meeting today, they plan to begin in March and the schedule in the contract says they will be done by July 2006. The city requested, in reference to Curtis Road, that we make a commitment that we are on board with the Clark Dietz contract and that we understand the engineering needs to move forward; he would also like to reserve the right to make any more specific commitments until the pavement management system is complete. He stated he agrees with everything they are asking for with exception of the financing; our options are to finance internally or to tell the city that we are asking them to finance this but we are not willing to pay interest.

Ms. McGrath stated the agreement seems to be the document by which the County will say what our commitment will or won't be to this project. She is uncomfortable with the suggestion they have made that we will do written confirmation of any aspect of the project outside of that agreement. She suggested they update the intergovernmental agreement that defines our commitment; review the present document and ask the city for an updated agreement so we have something to respond to.

Mr. Jay stated he is frustrated with intergovernmental agreements, they originally did not agree to the type of project that is before them now. At some point the County needs to start looking out for itself because we don't have the money to do what everyone wants us to do. The original agreement was for a 2 lane roadway and now they are asking for a 5 lane. He also asked if there are any other projects that they will come up with, stating if the scope of a project grows we should have more time to pay it off.

Fringe Road Funding

Mr. Blue responded that the Olympian Drive project is still hanging out there. He attended a meeting with Ms. Wysocki, representatives from RPC, the cities and villages to talk about the priorities of this area with transportation, beyond what is on the books. Everyone decided Olympian Drive should be a number one priority if we could get the money.

Mr. Bensyl asked, if we stay within our cap, how we will split the money between entities in years where we have more than one project. Mr. Blue explained that was never outlined in the resolution, the thought process from the City of Champaign was that they and Savoy have 64% of the population in the urbanized area and Urbana has 36% so they should get \$640,000 and Urbana should get \$360,000 although money cannot be spent in urban areas without CUUATS. Ms. Feinen stated she would discourage the committee from using population to distribute money and she asked if Urbana has changed its mind about Olympian Drive remembering that one reason we didn't continue with the project was because they didn't want it to go all the way through. Mr. Langenheim stated Urbana has changed their mind about the project and he anticipates some arguments from the Cities that 90% of the gas tax money comes out of the cities and should be spent in the cities.

Mr. O'Connor left the meeting at 10:25 a.m.

Ms. Gross stated she is frustrated by this process. We have bids and the same firms get the contracts, she stated when she is asked about that she doesn't know what to say to people, if the process is above the board or not and she pointed out that the gas tax money is generated by the City folks.

Ms. Feinen stated she encourages Ms. Gross to attend the bid openings. They have a process and an Engineer she believes in and she pointed out that it is market driven; if there is only one firm that can do the work they will get the contracts. She encouraged her to get more involved so she is comfortable and agreed it is the allocation of money they are all struggling with.

Ms. Gross stated she has no idea about road costs or if the costs make sense. She sees tons of money going into our highways and she doesn't know if anything is correct, she stated she feels lost.

Mr. Doenitz explained there are ways to find out about this stuff and he encouraged Ms. Gross to become more informed. Mr. Jay reminded the committee that the cities already get a share of MFT and now they are wanting the County's portion, when they don't share theirs with us.

Fringe Road Funding cont.

Mr. Blue stated when you do an estimate for construction costs you can bet that 50% is for people and 50% is material or items. The majority of the cost for building a roadway is driven by how many people it takes, the equipment and fuel cost and the farther away the business is, the more it is going to cost. That lends to a local company getting our projects; you will not see someone from another county getting a contract in Champaign County because they cannot afford to send their people that far away. In relationship to the letter from the City he stated he will get back with them to try and get a new Curtis Road agreement that includes everything. He stated he doesn't want to hold the city up in this project and he would like to give them a good faith offering that they should continue with their process. Ms. Cowart stated Ms. McGrath and Mr. Blue should get together and review the proposed Clark Dietz contract.

MOTION by Jay to direct our County Engineer and State's Attorney's office to review and approve the engineering contract with Clark-Dietz, submitted by the City of Champaign; seconded by Carter. **Motion carried**.

New Facility Update

Mr. Blue stated that he attended a meeting on January 25th with the cities and village of Savov in relationship to the new facility and the possibility of sharing. The cities had committed that, once we got through our programming phase, we would come back to discuss at which time they were to have a program as well. At the meeting, they discovered that Urbana made no movement in updating their three year old program. The City of Champaign had moved forward in re-evaluating their program but they reported that it wouldn't be until June when their consultant would have a revised program. The cities also talked about doing an RFP for a consultant to study the feasibility of a cooperative venture between the cities and the county with a price tag of \$30,000-\$50,000. This study would take 3 months and would not start until after the city got their programming back in June so we would be looking at losing an entire construction season. He explained that he presented this information to the Facilities committee on Tuesday and they voted to not participate in a joint feasibility study, he reported this information to the cities yesterday at the fringe road meeting and they weren't surprised. At this point we are continuing with the schematic design for the new facility and trying to make our timeline so we can start to bid and construct this spring and summer.

Bridge Petitions Crittenden Road District

MOTION by Jay to recommend County Board approval of the petition requesting and resolution approving appropriation of Funds from the County Bridge Fund pursuant to 605 ILCS 5/5-501 for Crittenden Road District; seconded by Carter. **Motion carried.**

Bridge Petitions cont.

Kerr Road District

MOTION by Jay to recommend County Board approval of the petition requesting and resolution approving appropriation of funds for the County Bridge Fund pursuant to 605 ILCS 5/5-501 for Kerr Road District; seconded by Langenheim. **Motion** carried.

Newcomb Road District

MOTION by Jay to recommend County Board approval of the petition requesting and resolution approving appropriation of funds for the County Bridge Fund pursuant to 605 ILCS 5/5-501 for Newcomb Road District; seconded by Carter. **Motion carried**.

Other Business

Mr. Blue stated that he doesn't want to get into a large construction season this year because they are working on the pavement management program but they did a foamed asphalt stabilization on County Road 9 last summer and that is a project that is overlapping from last year. It is the only project for paving this summer with an estimated cost, to do 4 miles of paving, of \$655,000 and they will be going out for bid in the near future.

Semi-Annual Review of Closed Session Minutes

Ms. McGrath stated she has reviewed the closed session minutes and suggests keeping them all closed.

Mr. Jay questioned the opening of the minutes of October 24, 2003 and Mr. Langenheim questioned the opening of the minutes of October 11, 2002 and April 25, 2003. Ms. McGrath stated that the October 24, 2003 minutes and the April 25, 2003 minutes can be opened but the minutes of October 11, 2002 should remain closed

MOTION by Langenheim to concur with the State's Attorney and open the closed session minutes of October 24, 2003 and April 25, 2003 with all other closed session minutes remaining closed; seconded by Bensyl. **Motion carried**.

Determination of Consent Agenda Items

Committee consensus to include items 6 B and G on the County Board consent agenda.

Mr. Langenheim stated the Clerk turned over all parking spaces reserved for county board members, and none of the visitor parking spaces, to visiting voters. He realizes that County Board members don't always use those spaces but objects to that and believes half of the spaces should come from visitor parking.

Adjournment

Ms. Cowart declared the meeting adjourned at 10:57 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Tiffany Talbott Administrative Secretary